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NOTICE OF THE 7TH EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 7th Extra Ordinary General Meeting of National Assets
Insurance Limited will be held at Ground Floor, NBP, Aitemaad Islamic Banking,
PECHS, Block-2, Tariq Road, Karachi, on 10 September 2024 at 11:00 a.m., to transact
the following business:

Ordinary Business

1.

To consider and approve the minutes of the 5th Extra Ordinary General Meeting
of the Company, held at 2nd Floor, NBP, Aitemaad Islamic Banking, PECHS,
Block-2, Tarig Road, Karachi, on 11 January 2024 at 10:30 a.m.

To consider and approve the minutes of the 6th Extra Ordinary General Meeting
of the Company, started on 09 July 2024 at 11:00 a.m., at 2nd Floor, NBP,
Aitemaad Islamic Banking, PECHS, Block-2, Tariq Road, Karachi, adjourned till
12 July 2024 at 4:00 p.m. and concluded on the same date after 4:00 p.m.
(without making any decisions).

To approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
period ended on 28 March 2024 and starting from 29 September 2023 along
with all the policies as mentioned in the Financial Statements while adopting the
external auditors' report thereon.

To discuss and approve the Liquidator's Report to the Shareholders for its onward
submission with SECP.

To ratify the payments of Income Tax against tax demands of tax years 2015 &
2020.

To ratify the payments to the Liquidator from 29 March 2024 till 28 June 2024
and to ratify the payments to the Liquidator's supporting staff from 29 March 2024
till this 7th EOGM.

To discuss and approve the increase in the fee of consultants to the liquidator
i.e. Parker Russell-A.J.S. (Advocates, Barrister & Legal Consultants) against
their request.

To discuss and approve the increase in the fee of external auditors against their
request.

Special Business

1.

To extend the term of the Liquidator in order to handle the remaining process of
Members' Voluntary Winding Up and to revise the payments to be made to him
and his supporting staff.
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Others

To decide the payment to the Liquidator for the extra services extended specifically
in dealing with Federal Investigating Authority (FIA).

To obtain signatures of all the shareholders and / or their representatives present
in the meeting on the decisions made in the meeting for record purposes.

To transact any other business with the permission of the chair.

o
—

Date: 12 August 2024 MUHAMMAD UMAIR BHAUR

(Liquidator)

The share transfer books of the Company is already closed due to winding up
proceedings.

A member entitled to attend and vote at a General Meeting is entitled to appoint
another member as a proxy and vote on his/her behalf. Proxies in order to be
effective must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than
48 hours before the time of the meeting.

The financial statements are available on website i.e. www.nail.com.pk

THE ANNEXED NOTES ON PAGE NO. 5 FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS
NOTICE
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NOTES

To

THE NOTICE OF THE 7TH EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

The 6th EOGM had been started on 09 July 2024 at 11:00 a.m. at 2nd Floor,
NBP, Aitemaad Islamic Banking, PECHS, Block-2, Tarig Road, Karachi, and
adjourned on advice of the shareholders to resume it on 12 July 2024 at same
place at 4:00 p.m.

Since no shareholder came to resume the meeting on 12 July 2024, the meeting
had been concluded without passing any resolutions.

Under the above unique scenario, an opinion had been sought from Mohsin
Tayebaly & Co. (MTC).

MTC advised that a fresh EOGM i.e. the 7th EOGM is needed to be called to
pass the resolutions required to keep the winding up process on track.

MTC advised for the extension of the term of the Liquidator till the conclusion of
the winding up and for revision of his package.

Hence, in the 7th EOGM, the term of the Liquidator and his supporting staff would
be approved from 29 March 2024 to the date of conclusion of the winding up
process.

Further, the payments to be made to the Liquidator and his supporting staff shall
be decided for a period of one year i.e. from 29 March 2024 to 28 March 2025
in this EOGM. However, in case the time required for the liquidation exceeds 28
March 2025, further revisions to the payments to the Liquidator and the supporting
staff shall be made annually based on inflation factor.

After the completion of winding up, the monthly payments related to winding up
would be released for one additional month.

In case the shareholders do not approve the extension of the term of the Liquidator
and revise the monthly payments (acceptable to the Liquidator) for the liquidation
process to continue, there would essentially be a status-quo with no one responsible
for taking charge of NAIL's assets and / or affairs.

The Liquidator has been continuing to look after the affairs of NAIL in good faith
without drawing his "Monthly Allowance" till the decisions in the 7th EOGM are
positively made, however if no further decision is taken, the Liquidator will stand
absolved and released from any liability or obligation towards the shareholders.
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Regarding the increase in the fees of the External Auditors and the Consultants
to the Liquidator, the shareholders may either;

(a) approve the increase in the fee required to continue with the External Auditors
and Consultants to the Liquidator along with confirmation that the Liquidator
may agree upon further revision as required after expiry of one year

or;

(b) confirm that the Liquidator may negotiate and / or agree on the fees with the
External Auditors and Consultants to the Liquidator himself from time to time
in the best interest of the Company.

If the shareholders would still be unable and / or unwilling to pass the resolutions
on the above critical matters on the suggested pattern, the Liquidator may be
required to write to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
to seek instructions / guidance and if not forthcoming, an application may be
made to the High Court for the directions.

MOST LIKELY, CONVERTING THE MODE OF THIS WINDING UP FROM
"MEMBERS' VOLUNTARY WINDING UP" TO "WINDING UP SUBJECT TO
SUPERVISION OF COURT" OR "WINDING UP BY COURT" WOULD GROSSLY
INCREASE THE TIME FRAME AS WELL AS COST.
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LIQUIDATOR'S REPORT REGARDING LIQUIDATION PROCEEDINGS
REGARDING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FROM 29 SEPTEMBER 2023 TO 28 MARCH 2024
U/S 415 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2017
(MEMBERS' VOLUNTARY WINDINGUP)
Past Summary

Members Voluntary Winding Up of the Company was started on 29 March 2022.
All required notices to the regulatory authorities and shareholders were duly given.
All statutory Forms were duly submitted with SECP. Preliminary report of Liquidator
was also duly submitted.

A. Regarding 1st Report of Liquidator, dated 31 May 2023

As per Section 141 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, a clearance from FBR
was required before distribution of liquidated funds. Due to some procedural and
technical problems at FBR's end, neither manual nor online facility was available
to apply for permission under the above-mentioned section.

Later, in the interest of time as well as in the interest of shareholders, the
undersigned distributed the capital amount to all major shareholders as well as
to individual shareholders (On advice of liquidation consultant) whose bank
accounts were known (under the intimation to the concerned Commissioner
Income Tax).

There was no involvement of withholding tax in distribution of capital amount.
However, the undersigned kept reasonable cushion of funds in the form of complete
amount of retained earnings to meet any unforeseen demands from FBR and /
or any other authority and valid claims.

As on 31 May 2023 (the date of 1st report of the Liquidator), out of total capital
of Rs. 500 million, Rs. 473.96 million had been distributed to shareholders which
becomes 94.79% of total capital.

Please refer to the 1st report of the Liquidator for further details (Annexed "A").
As the distribution of retained earnings / dividends involved deduction of withholding
tax, while FBR was still not in a position to issue permission under section 141
of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 as discussed above, the undersigned approached
the Federal Tax Ombudsman through the Tax Consultant "Messrs. Grant Thornton".

B. Regarding 2nd Report of Liquidator, dated 15 December 2023

Please refer to the 2nd report of the Liquidator for further details (Annexed "B").
7
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Liquidator's Report
Related to Financial Statements
For the Period from 29 September 2023 to 28 March 2024

It has already been discussed in the previous reports of the Liquidator that so far
the delay in the conclusion of winding up is due to tax matters pending at FBR's
end.

Now in addition to the above, Federal Investigating Authority (FIA) has also started
an inquiry based on the complaint of Mr. Ubaid Ur Rehman.

Let us discuss both the matters in tandem.
. INCOME TAX MATTERS

We segregate tax matters below for ease of understanding,
(a) Overall Status

The income tax assessment of the Company has been completed up to and
including the tax year 2022 (i.e. year ended on 31 December 2021), as per
information received from tax consultant). The tax returns for the tax years from
2010 to 2022 (Except tax years 2015 and 2020) had been treated as assessment
orders under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 on the dates the
returns were filed, unless amended otherwise.

(b) Tax Years 2015 and 2020

In respect of assessment years 2015 and 2020, the Deputy Commissioner Inland
Revenue (DCIR) made certain additions / disallowances which resulted in additional
tax liability amounting to Rs. 12.56 million and Rs. 5.43 million respectively.

The Company submitted appeals before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
(Appeals) where CIR (Appeals) set aside the addition and disallowances made
by the DCIR with the direction to re-examination, re-consideration, re-verification
and re-adjustment.

The ACIR passed order dated 10 July 2023 giving appeal effect of CIR (Appeals)
order reducing the demands to Rs. 6.69 million and Rs. 5.55 million for tax years
2015 and 2020 respectively.




(c)

(d)
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Company submitted the appeals before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
(Appeals) on 08 August 2023 and received the appellate orders on 26 January
2024 and 13 February 2024.

The ACIR passed appeal affect orders for Tax Year 2015, on 14 March 2024,
creating demand of Rs. 4.15 million and for Tax Year 2020, on 13 March 2024,
creating demand of Rs. 5.55 million.

Payment of Demand against Tax Years 2015 and 2020

The Company paid the above mentioned tax demands through CPRs dated 25
March 2024 under the advice of tax consultants. The representatives of major
shareholders also verbally communicated to the Liquidator in an informal meeting
that they also wanted him to pay the demanded amount as soon as possible
without further contesting the matter with FBR in the larger interest of all the
shareholders.

Order u/s 141 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001

The previous Report of the Liquidator mentions that FBR had issued the order
u/s 141 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, dated 25 August 2023 in result of
continuous efforts of the Company.

However, instead of objectively advising an amount to be set aside by the Liquidator
as referred in section 141 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, the order did not
contain the prescribed information in such a manner that the implementation could
be possible. The said weakness in the order, caused delay in distribution of
retained earnings to the shareholders. Further, in the same order, the tax authorities
also took up the audited financial statements for the period from 01 January 2022
to 28 March 2023 and raised a demand of around Rs. 21.7 million. This demand
was raised even before the due date for the submission of return for the tax year
2023 (return was not submitted by that time). Later the company submitted the
return for the tax year 2023 based on the computation of tax consultant within
due date. The liability that appeared in result of income tax computation at the
time of submission of return was duly paid along with the return. No provision has
been booked in this respect considering that the additional demand raised in the
order issued by FBR u/s 141 was incorrect. However, as FBR has once indicated
the said demand for the Tax Year 2023 in this order, the Liquidator has advised
the tax consultant to obtain a clean chit from FBR regarding not only this tax year
but also for all other tax years before distribution of retained earnings.

Audits of Withholding Tax Statements of Five Years Rule 44(4) of the Income
Tax Rules 2002 Read With Section 176 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001

All the required documents have been submitted with FBR regarding the tax audits
of withholding tax statements for the tax years 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022.




(e)
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The order with "NIL" liability for the tax year 2018, dated 17 May 2024 has been
received, while the orders for the rest of four (4) tax years are still awaited.

Letter of Assistant Commissioner-IR, addressed to The Commissioner Inland
Revenue

In the latest letter No. ACIR / UNIT - 04 / RANGE - B / ZONE -1V /CTO/ 2023-
2024 /826, dated 24 April 2024 (Annexed "C") written by Assistant Commissioner-
IR, addressed to The Commissioner Inland Revenue, Zone 1V, Corporate Tax
Office, Karachi, it has been communicated that;

" Return of income for the tax year 2022 has been e-filed on 13-10-2022 by
declaring taxable income at Rs. 34,256,947/- on which income tax chargable at
Rs. 9,934,515/-. Accordingly deemed assessment completed u/s 120 of the Income
Tax Ordinance.

It is further submitted that the perusal of record revealed that the tax payer's
company through Annual General Meeting of the company has decided to wind
up the business w.e.f. 23-03-2022."

Assistant Commissioner further writes,

"Therefore, in order to complete all pending proceedings and to protect revenue,
if any in future, it is imperative select the case of tax payer for the latest tax year
which is presently tax year 2022 for the period ending 31-12-2022. Accordingly,
a letter / reminder vide no. CIR/Z-IV/CTO/KHI/2022-23 dated 07-07- 2023 by your
good office was submitted to the Member Audit, Federal Board of Revenue,
Islamabad for obtaining Board's permission u/s 171 (1) of the Income Tax Ordinance
2001 read with Clause (105A) Part |V of the 2nd Schedule of the Income Tax
Ordinance 2001 which is pending so far.

Moreover return of Tax Year 2023 has also been filed on 31-10- 2023 declaring
taxable income at Rs. 56,459,789/- and tax chargable at Rs. 16,373,339/-. Since
tax payer filed the latest return for tax year 2023, hence it is proposed that the
case of tax payer may kindly be selected for the tax year 2023 instead of tax year
2022 if deemed appropriate.”

INVOLVEMENT OF FEDERAL INVESTIGATING AUTHORITY (FIA)

In the meanwhile, FIA took up the complaint of Mr. Ubaid Ur Rehman (the complainant)
against NAIL and officials of National Bank of Pakistan (NBP).

In result FIA wrote Inquiry letter No. DD/CCC/K/INQ-53-2023/11075-76, dated 14
December 2023 (Annexed "D") addressed to one of the major shareholders of
the Company i.e. NBP (Group Head Compliance Group of NBP).

10
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From the contents of the above referred letter, it is evident that FIA took the
Company as a subsidiary of NBP and required certain documents / information
about the Company, NBP, NBP Staff Welfare Foundation, NBP Employees
Benevolent Fund Trust and NBP Employees Pension Fund from NBP.

In response, NBP discussed the matter with the Liquidator and perhaps internally
with its legal department and wrote to FIA that it appears that u/s 41-B of the
SECP Act., FIA does not have the authority to probe into this matter.

Later, FIA wrote 2nd letter addressed to the President, NBP, letter No.
DD/CCC/K/INQ-53-2023/11261-62, dated 21 December 2023. Through this letter,
FIA communicated that they take NBP's stance as "Withholding of requisite record".
FIA again asked for the record and communicated that failing to providing of the
record would be compelled to initiate legal proceedings for non- provision /
withholding evidentiary record.

Then FIA sent "Call-Up Notice" under its 3rd letter, addressed to the Group Head,
Compliance Group of NBP, letter No. DD/CCC/K/INQ-53-2023/315-16, dated 09
January 2024. This time FIA took the support of section 25(1) of the Anti Money
Laundering Act 2010 read with Section 160 CRPC and The Prevention of Corruption
Act 1947 and Pakistan Penal Code 1898.

Appearance of the Liquidator before FIA

On advice of Senior Executives of NBP, the Liquidator appeared before the
concerned Assistant Director / Inquiry Officer of FIA for submission of the required
record. During the meeting, the Inquiry Officer interviewed the Liquidator about
the Company, its promoters and directors since the date of its incorporation.
Questions were also asked about an NBP related case against some of the past
directors of the Company. Since the said case had no relation to the Company
and it had already been decided in favour of NBP Officials, the Liquidator provided
the copy of decision of the Court of Law through which the above referred NBP
Executives / promoters and past directors of the Company had been acquitted.

The experience of this interview was unpleasant as FIA officials normally possess
the perception that everyone whom they interview is criminal even before the
conviction by the court of law.

Since the said interview was conducted under durance, the Liquidator directly
wrote to The Director General FIA, Director FIA concerned and other relevant
officials of the agency.

After that, the Liquidator did not receive any intimation from FIA or from NBP for

a reasonable time. However, the Liquidator expected that this matter would again
be probed into by FIA before its formal closure.

11
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The above referred physical appearances of the Liquidator before FIA Officials,
documentations, discussions with various lawyers and consultants for handling
the FIA related matters is in addition to the usual statutory responsibilities of the
Liquidator.

Some facts related to meetings with FIA Officials

The Liquidator asked FIA Officials to provide him the copy of the source complaint
and / or specific allegations so that the focused documents could be provided to
the satisfaction of FIA.

Copy of the complaint is also necessary if the Liquidator and / or NBP Officials
decide to initiate defamation case u/s 182 of the Pakistan Penal Code 1860,
against the complainant.

However, the copy of the complaint was not provided to the Liquidator. The
Liquidator humbly submitted almost all the available record to FIA Officials twice.
On his request for the acknowledgement of receiving, FIA Officials refused to do
So.

The Investigating Officer did not secure the record under a 'Mushirnama' as per
standard police/FIA procedure.

Latest phone call from FIA dated 04 June 2024

As expected, the Liquidator received a phone call from another Assistant Director
(A.D.) FIA regarding the same matter.

The A.D. advised that the above referred inquiry has now been transferred to him
and he would look into it onwards. The A.D. discussed the matter with the Liquidator
on phone briefly and advised him to have a meeting with his good self. The
Liquidator advised that currently, due to coming Extra Ordinary General Meeting
(EOGM), he is over occupied, however he would do his best to meet the A.D.
soon after completing his statutory responsibilities regarding holding of the EOGM.

The Liquidator communicated all this to the representatives of major shareholders
of the Company through an e mail.

FIA wrote letter No. FIA/CC/INQ 53-2023/NBP/2024/ 5723-24, dated 06 June
2024 to NBP asking for some record related to Funds and / or Trust, which had
investments in the Company before distribution of funds in result of winding up
proceedings.

We understand the NBP would be providing the required documents to FIA.

The consultant has advised that in order to deal with any complaints of shareholders
(in future), before any agency including FIA, NAB, SECP and Federal Ombudsman,
the Liquidator has the statutory powers to appoint a law firm for his support so
that accomplishment of winding up could be expedited. These powers extend to
all kinds of experts required for the Liquidation.

12
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Liquidator's Opinion on Income Tax Matters

The Liquidator understands that the matters related to income tax are being
resolved gradually. The major shareholders have communicated their no objection
to the Liquidator for making payments against income tax demands in an informal
meeting. The Liquidator understands that after some time all the tax related matters
would be resolved and the tax consultant would be able to provide the Liquidator
with a certificate / letter from FBR reflecting that as all the tax matters have been
resolved, the Liquidator can distribute retained earnings to the shareholders after
deduction of withholding tax.

Liquidator's Opinion on FIA Related Matters

The matters related to complaints by individual shareholders might continue to
be popping up.

Various individual shareholders have launched complaints against the Company
and / or NBP in the past.

From the complaints, it appears that individual shareholders are under the
impression that NBP had deducted Rs. 10,000/- from some kind of their funds in
the year 2011 and against that deduction, they were provided shares of the
Company.

NBP Officials have verbally advised us that NBP never deducted any amount
from any fund of its employees for giving shares of the Company to its employees.
Rather, these shares were gift from NBP to its employees (as ex-gratia).

There are more than 15,000 individual shareholders of the Company. Due to their
misperception as discussed above, they have launched complaints with Federal
Ombudsman, Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, FIA and NAB for
a number of times.

Generally, now the nature of complains is that Rs. 10,000/- had been deducted
by NBP in 2011 from employees' funds and now at the time of winding up, the
Liquidator has been returning only Rs. 10,000/- to every shareholder while during
this period, based on Mark up rate, Rs. 10,000/- should have been multiplied. It
is obvious that retained earnings would be distributed among the shareholders
at a later stage. The Company as well as NBP have explained at various forums
that Ordinary Shares are not fixed deposits. Ordinary Shares of any company
bear pros and cons of various kinds like financial opportunities and risks. No
committed profits are given against ordinary shares. The past Boards of Directors
of NAIL did their best to obtain the insurance license but after the refusal by
regulators, the dissolution of the Company was started in compliance of Companies
Act 2017.

So far, most of the principal amount of the share capital has been released and
after obtaining the required permissions from FBR etc., the retained earnings /
dividends shall be distributed among the shareholders proportionately after
deduction of withholding tax.

13




| —————————

NAILNadenat 85esl National Assets Insurance Ltd.

General Insurance Company

The previous complainants could not prove their allegations on any of the above
forums. The reason being that when the facts are submitted with the authorities
along with the evidences, complaints were diluted.

It appears that even after the conclusion of winding up, such baseless complaints
by individual shareholders might continue to come before various agencies against
the concerned officials of NBP, Company or the Liquidator and resultantly they
might be required to appear before such agencies.

This may become a never-ending story causing continuous loss to the Government
Exchequer. Hence, in order to avoid such situation, an airtight arrangement should
be developed through some well reputed corporate lawyer.

Status of Distribution of Capital Amount

The process of distribution of capital amount to the shareholders against their
claims is still in progress and its existing status as on 28 March 2024 is as following;

Description Amount in PKR
Individuals (11867 in 1st batch) 118,670,000
Individuals (208 in 2nd batch) 2,080,000
Individuals (736 in 3rd batch) 7,554,990
Individuals (84 in 4th batch) 840,000
Individuals (12 individuals through cheques) 120,000
Individuals (53 in 5th batch) 530,000
Individuals (4 in 6th batch) 40,000
NBP 44,815,000
NBP Staff Welfare Foundation 90,000,000
NBP Employees Benevolent Funds 50,000,000
NBP Employees Pension Funds 160,000,000
Total Distributed Capital 474,649,990

Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants have conducted the external audit of financial
statements of the Company for the period from 29 September 2023 to 28 March
2024 and the same financial statements along with the notice of Extra Ordinary
General Meeting (EOGM) are being dispatched to the shareholders at their latest
available addresses. This report shall be presented before the shareholders in
the EOGM and after its approval; the same shall be submitted with SECP.

Due to unforeseen delays in the liquidation process, specially, regarding matters

related to FBR and FIA, this report has been issued in compliance of Section 415
of the Companies Act 2017.

14
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»  Due to unforeseen and uncontrollable factors of delay in the liquidation process,
depending on technical and legal matters related to FBR and FIA, the Liquidator's
term may be extended for at least one year or till the completion of the assignment
whatever be earlier. Accordingly, the payments (as adjusted by the inflation factor
and additional duties with reference to FIA related inquiry, assigned by the major
shareholders) to the Liquidator, before and after 28 March 2024, needs to be
approved in the coming EOGM.

*  No other matter is material in conclusion of the winding up so far.

V.

Muhammad Umair Bhaur Date: 10 June 2024
Liquidator

15




| —————————

NAILNadenat 85esl National Assets Insurance Ltd.

General Insurance Company

Annexure A of Current Report

LIQUIDATOR'S REPORT REGARDING LIQUIDATION PROCEEDINGS

(MEMBERS' VOLUNTARY WINDINGUP)

In order to initiate the winding up of the Company, Special Resolution was passed
by the members of the Company in the AGM held on 29 March 2022 in which
they decided to windup the Company by way of "Members' Voluntary Winding
Up" and the undersigned was appointed as the liquidator to conduct the liquidation
proceedings.

The notice of the winding up was sent to Printing Corporation of Pakistan on 04
April 2022 for printing in the Gazette of Pakistan and was also published in two
newspapers on 05 April 2022, having nationwide circulation. The same was sent
to SECP as well. This also serves the purpose of intimating creditors etc. to lodge
the claims (if any).

Forms 109 and 110 were submitted with Securities & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) under Section 374 of the Companies Act 2017 and under Rule
271 of Companies Court Rules 1997.

The preliminary report of liquidator, containing statement of assets and liabilities
as on 08 April 2022 was duly filed with SECP well in time.

Paid the gratuity to all employees entitled to it. The Actuary calculated the
disbursement amounts.

Notices addressing to shareholders were published in two newspapers on 25
November 2022, having nationwide circulation, advising them to contact the
liquidator to collect the liquidated funds.

No claims were received from any creditor except the claims from Company's
employees for encashment of earned leave as per approved HR policy manual.
After obtaining legal opinion, the Company paid the same.

As per Section 141 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, a clearance from FBR is
required before distribution of liquidated funds. Due to some procedural and
technical flaws at FBR's end, neither manual nor online facility is available to apply
for permission under the above-mentioned section.

In the interest of the shareholders, the undersigned wrote a letter and then two
well-spaced reminders to FBR, finally stating that since we understand that FBR
is not in a position to issue the required permission, the undersigned is going to
distribute the capital amount only, as there is no involvement of withholding tax
in the distribution of capital. However, if still FBR feels any reservations, it can
communicate the same to the undersigned.

16
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Since no reply was received, 100% of capital amount was distributed to all major
shareholders and the distribution of capital amount to individual shareholders was
also started, based on the availability of their whereabouts and bank account
numbers.

Following is the picture of distribution of capital amount;

Description Amount in PKR
Individuals (11867) 118,670,000
Individuals (208) 2,080,000
Individuals (736) 7,554,990
Individuals (84) 840,000
NBP 44,815,000
NBP Staff Welfare Foundation 90,000,000
NBP Employees Benevolent Fund 50,000,000
NBP Employees Pension Fund 160,000,000
Total Distributed 473,959,990

Thus out of total capital of Rs. 500 million, Rs. 473.959 million has been distributed
as on the date of this document which becomes 94.79% of total capital.

In case of individual shareholders, the basic data, based on CNIC# criteria, was
provided by NBP to the Company in the year 2011 (when the shares were issued
to the individuals). But now we found some such cases where the actual CNIC#
did not match with the CNIC# provided to the Company in 2011.

The undersigned can release funds in favour of only those shareholders whose
CNIC# provided in 2011 and provided now by the shareholders are same.

In case, there is any difference in CNIC#, the undersigned is dependent on NBP's
verification.

Now the HR of NBP has been cooperating and they have provided us an initial
list advising us that who are the real shareholders as per their updated record.

We have received claims against approximately 30 such shareholders who have
expired. Under the advice of the lawyer, we have asked their successors to provide
the succession certificates and meet some other requirements so that the funds
may be released.

However, in case some successors cannot meet such requirements, the lawyers

have advised to deposit the funds in a special account as per the requirements
of the Companies Act 2017.
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Since the liquidation process is at advanced stage now, and the distribution of
retained earnings / dividends involve deduction of withholding tax, while FBR is
still not in a position to issue permission under section 141 of the Income Tax
Ordinance 2001 as discussed above, the undersigned has approached Federal
Tax Ombudsman.

During the hearing, the Ombudsman advised the representative of FBR (Deputy
Commissioner) that the taxpayer must be facilitated. If there is any problem with
FBR's online system, accept the manual / physical application, complete the
process and submit the report in 40 days.

In view of above, it is expected that the relevant clearance from FBR will be
obtained shortly and the undersigned shall be in a position to distribute the retained
earnings.

In the meantime, the undersigned has also obtained legal opinion regarding
distribution of retained earnings to individual shareholders without the permission
of FBR (however under the intimation of FBR) in case this matter is stretched
beyond reasonable time.

For this purpose, the major shareholders need to give in writing consent to the
undersigned that they have no objection in case the undersigned holds their share
of retained earnings and releases the share of retained earnings to the individual
shareholders on priority basis.

Thus, major shareholders' retained earnings shall be held to settle the tax liability
(if any arises).

This option, together with the relevant required corporate formalities, has been
communicated to the major shareholders.

Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants have conducted the external audit of financial
statements of the Company for the period from 01 January 2022 to 28 March
2023 and the same financial statements along with the notice of Annual General
Meeting (AGM) are being dispatched to the shareholders at their latest available
addresses. Liquidator's report has also been included into to the above mentioned
documents. The same report shall be presented before the shareholders in the
AGM and then shall be submitted with SECP.

Due to the unforeseen delay in the liquidation process, due to the technical and
legal limitation of FBR, the liquidator's term may be extended till the completion
of the assignment. Accordingly, the payments (as adjusted with inflation factor)
to the liquidator, beyond 28 March 2023 needs to be approved by the coming
AGM.

L

Muhammad Umair Bhaur Date: 31 May 2023

Liquidator
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Annexure B of Current Report

LIQUIDATOR'S REPORT REGARDING LIQUIDATION PROCEEDINGS
U/S 415 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2017
(MEMBERS' VOLUNTARY WINDINGUP)

Past Summary

Members Voluntary Winding Up of the Company was started on 29 March 2022. All
required notices to regulatory authorities and shareholders were duly given. All statutory
Forms were duly submitted with SECP. Preliminary report of liquidator was also duly
submitted.

As per Section 141 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, a clearance from FBR was
required to be obtained before distribution of liquidated funds. Due to some procedural
and technical issues at FBR's end, neither manual nor online facility was available to
apply for permission under the above-mentioned section.

Later, in the interest of time as well as in the interest of shareholders, the Liquidator
distributed the capital amount to all major shareholders as well as to individual
shareholders (On advice of consultant) whose bank accounts were known (under the
intimation to the concerned Commissioner Income Tax).

There was no involvement of withholding tax in distribution of capital amount. However,
the Liquidator kept reasonable cushion of funds in the form of complete amount of
retained earnings to meet any unforeseen demands from FBR and / or any other
authority and to meet other valid claims.

As on 31 May 2023 (the date of previous report of the Liquidator), out of total capital
of Rs. 500 million, Rs. 473.959 million had been distributed to shareholders which
becomes 94.79% of total capital.

Please refer to the last report of the Liquidator for further details Annexed "A".
As the distribution of retained earnings / dividends involved deduction of withholding
tax, while FBR was still not in a position to issue permission under section 141 of the

Income Tax Ordinance 2001 as discussed above, the Liquidator approached the
Federal Tax Ombudsman through the Tax Consultant "Messrs. Grant Thornton".
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Liquidator's Report related to the developments from 29 March 2023 to 15
December 2023

1.

The summary of FBR related matters has been attached as Annexed "B".

FBR issued Order u/s 141 (2) of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, dated 25 August
2023, Annexed "C" in result of the Liquidator's application to the Federal Tax
Ombudsman.

However, they did not advise the aggregate amount (all amounts that have already
been communicated as demands and those that might become demands in result
of existing and future audit proceedings) to be set aside as per the requirements
of tax law.

Extract from the section 141 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 is hereunder,

"The Commissioner shall, within three months of being notified under sub-
section (1), notify the liquidator in writing of the amount which appears to the
Commissioner to be sufficient to provide for any tax which is or will become
payable by the person whose assets are in the possession of the liquidator.”

Under the above scenario, the Liquidator discussed the matter with the tax
consultant and the consultant agreed to the Liquidator's above mentioned
understanding.

After filing the Income Tax Return for the period from 01 January 2022 to 28 March
2023, the Liquidator is now once again seeking for an appointment to personally
meet FBR's concerned officials along with the tax consultant to find out the way
forward so that the liquidation may be concluded as early as possible.

Annexure "B" reflects that FBR has so far mentioned the tax liability to the tune
of around Rs. 34 million. However, the Liquidator understands that since the
Income Tax Return for the period from 01 January 2022 to 28 March 2023 has
been submitted and the computed admitted income tax of Rs. 3.1 million has
been duly paid, the tax demand related to the period from 01 January 2022 to 28
March 2023 would be accordingly reduced.

However, FBR in its order under section 141 has further advised that an additional
amount of tax liability can appear in result of five (5) audits of withholding tax
statements of five (5) tax years and further the Income Tax Authorities have
recommended to FBR Headquarters for their permission regarding selection of
an additional Tax Year's audit u/s 177.

20




NAIL[National Assets) - National Assets Insurance Ltd.

General Insurance Company

Hence, the full and final aggregate amount of tax liability has not been / cannot
be ascertained at this point of time.

The Liquidator as well as the tax consultant understand that the tax liability as
mentioned in 141 order is grossly overstated.

After the rectification of all the matters discussed above, the correct tax liability
may be immaterial as compared to the existing demand.

The Liquidator has already requested the Income Tax Authorities for out of turn
taking up of the appeals for tax year 2015 and 2020 in the interest of shareholders.

Under the above scenario, the Liquidator understands that the tax matters as
communicated by FBR to the Company are;

. material in amounts,
*  not quantified by FBR so far
* and the related demands are not in line with the tax law

Hence, the Liquidator is left with two options;

a. To struggle to get the known demands minimized through filing of appeals etc.
and wait for orders regarding Withholding Tax Audits of 5 tax years and one
more tax audit of one complete tax year that has yet to be started.

or

b. To pay off the complete amount demanded by FBR as reduced by the payment
of admitted income tax of Rs. 3.1 million and further wait till FBR concludes
their further demands in result of 5 years' audits of withholding tax statements
and one audit of one complete tax year (whenever FBR will choose, start and
concludes it).

After discussion with the tax consultant, the Liquidator understands that even if
the Company pays off the existing demand of FBR at this stage, still the winding
up cannot be concluded until the 5 years' audits of withholding tax statements
have been concluded and one audit of one new complete year has also been
conducted by FBR.

Hence, the Liquidator understands that in the meantime the Company should

continue the efforts for conclusion of appeals for the tax years 2015 and 2020 in
its favour.
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This will not increase the aggregate time of concluding the winding up as the
completion of winding up is linked to the completion of tax audits as mentioned
above.

The existing status of distribution of capital amounts to the shareholders as on

the date of this document is as following;

Description Amount in PKR
Individuals (11867 in 1st batch) 118,670,000
Individuals (208 in 2nd batch) 2,080,000
Individuals (736 in 3rd batch) 7,554,990
Individuals (84 in 4th batch) 840,000
Individuals (12 individuals through cheques) 120,000
Individuals (53 in 5th batch & 2 through individual cheques) 550,000
NBP 44,815,000
NBP Staff Welfare Foundation 90,000,000
NBP Employees Benevolent Funds 50,000,000
NBP Employees Pension Funds 160,000,000
Total Distributed Capital 474,629,990

2. Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants have conducted the external audit of financial
statements of the Company for the period from 29 March 2023 to 28 September
2023 and the same financial statements along with the notice of Extra Ordinary
General Meeting (EOGM) are being dispatched to the shareholders at their latest
available addresses. This report shall be presented before the shareholders in
the EOGM and after its approval; the same shall be submitted with SECP.

3. Due to unforeseen delays in the liquidation process, specially, regarding matters
related to FBR, this report has been issued in compliance of Section 415 of the
Companies Act 2017.

4. No other matter is material in conclusion of the winding up so far.

%

Muhammad Umair Bhaur
Liquidator

Date: 15 December 2023
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“Annexure A”

LIQUIDATOR'S REPORT REGARDING LIQUIDATION PROCEEDINGS

(MEMBERS' VOLUNTARY WINDINGUP)

In order to initiate the winding up of the Company, Special Resolution was passed
by the members of the Company in the AGM held on 29 March 2022 in which
they decided to windup the Company by way of "Members' Voluntary Winding
Up" and the undersigned was appointed as the liquidator to conduct the liquidation
proceedings.

The notice of the winding up was sent to Printing Corporation of Pakistan on 04
April 2022 for printing in the Gazette of Pakistan and was also published in two
newspapers on 05 April 2022, having nationwide circulation. The same was sent
to SECP as well. This also serves the purpose of intimating creditors etc. to lodge
the claims (if any).

Forms 109 and 110 were submitted with Securities & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) under Section 374 of the Companies Act 2017 and under Rule
271 of Companies Court Rules 1997.

The preliminary report of liquidator, containing statement of assets and liabilities
as on 08 April 2022 was duly filed with SECP well in time.

Paid the gratuity to all employees entitled to it. The Actuary calculated the
disbursement amounts.

Notices addressing to shareholders were published in two newspapers on 25
November 2022, having nationwide circulation, advising them to contact the
liquidator to collect the liquidated funds.

No claims were received from any creditor except the claims from Company's
employees for encashment of earned leave as per approved HR policy manual.
After obtaining legal opinion, the Company paid the same.

As per Section 141 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, a clearance from FBR is
required before distribution of liquidated funds. Due to some procedural and
technical flaws at FBR's end, neither manual nor online facility is available to apply
for permission under the above-mentioned section.

In the interest of the shareholders, the undersigned wrote a letter and then two
well-spaced reminders to FBR, finally stating that since we understand that FBR
is not in a position to issue the required permission, the undersigned is going to
distribute the capital amount only, as there is no involvement of withholding tax
in the distribution of capital. However, if still FBR feels any reservations, it can
communicate the same to the undersigned.
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10. Since no reply was received, 100% of capital amount was distributed to all major

11.

12.

shareholders and the distribution of capital amount to individual shareholders was
also started, based on the availability of their whereabouts and bank account
numbers.

Following is the picture of distribution of capital amount;

Description Amount in PKR
Individuals (11867) 118,670,000
Individuals (208) 2,080,000
Individuals (736) 7,554,990
Individuals (84) 840,000
NBP 44,815,000
NBP Staff Welfare Foundation 90,000,000
NBP Employees Benevolent Fund 50,000,000
NBP Employees Pension Fund 160,000,000
Total Distributed 473,959,990

Thus out of total capital of Rs. 500 million, Rs. 473.959 million has been distributed
as on the date of this document which becomes 94.79% of total capital.

In case of individual shareholders, the basic data, based on CNIC# criteria, was
provided by NBP to the Company in the year 2011 (when the shares were issued
to the individuals). But now we found some such cases where the actual CNIC#
did not match with the CNIC# provided to the Company in 2011.

The undersigned can release funds in favour of only those shareholders whose
CNIC# provided in 2011 and provided now by the shareholders are same.

In case, there is any difference in CNIC#, the undersigned is dependent on NBP's
verification.

Now the HR of NBP has been cooperating and they have provided us an initial
list advising us that who are the real shareholders as per their updated record.

We have received claims against approximately 30 such shareholders who have
expired. Under the advice of the lawyer, we have asked their successors to provide
the succession certificates and meet some other requirements so that the funds
may be released.

However, in case some successors cannot meet such requirements, the lawyers

have advised to deposit the funds in a special account as per the requirements
of the Companies Act 2017.
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Since the liquidation process is at advanced stage now, and the distribution of
retained earnings / dividends involve deduction of withholding tax, while FBR is
still not in a position to issue permission under section 141 of the Income Tax
Ordinance 2001 as discussed above, the undersigned has approached Federal
Tax Ombudsman.

During the hearing, the Ombudsman advised the representative of FBR (Deputy
Commissioner) that the taxpayer must be facilitated. If there is any problem with
FBR's online system, accept the manual / physical application, complete the
process and submit the report in 40 days.

In view of above, it is expected that the relevant clearance from FBR will be
obtained shortly and the undersigned shall be in a position to distribute the retained
earnings.

In the meantime, the undersigned has also obtained legal opinion regarding
distribution of retained earnings to individual shareholders without the permission
of FBR (however under the intimation of FBR) in case this matter is stretched
beyond reasonable time.

For this purpose, the major shareholders need to give in writing consent to the
undersigned that they have no objection in case the undersigned holds their share
of retained earnings and releases the share of retained earnings to the individual
shareholders on priority basis.

Thus, major shareholders' retained earnings shall be held to settle the tax liability
(if any arises).

This option, together with the relevant required corporate formalities, has been
communicated to the major shareholders.

Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants have conducted the external audit of financial
statements of the Company for the period from 01 January 2022 to 28 March
2023 and the same financial statements along with the notice of Annual General
Meeting (AGM) are being dispatched to the shareholders at their latest available
addresses. Liquidator's report has also been included into to the above mentioned
documents. The same report shall be presented before the shareholders in the
AGM and then shall be submitted with SECP.

Due to the unforeseen delay in the liquidation process, due to the technical and
legal limitation of FBR, the liquidator's term may be extended till the completion
of the assignment. Accordingly, the payments (as adjusted with inflation factor)
to the liquidator, beyond 28 March 2023 needs to be approved by the coming
AGM.

I

Muhammad Umair Bhaur
Liquidator
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NATIONAL ASSETS INSURANCE LIMITED
SUMMARY OF FBR RELATED MATTERS RELATED TO LIQUIDATION

National Assets Insurance Ltd.

“Annexure B”

AS ON 28 NOVEMBER 2023
[ Document Date T Discription Tax Year Comments Demand | status |
Order U/S 141 (2)
of Income Tax
Ordinance 2001 (In
result of application Quick take up of
25 August 2023 to FTO) 2015 appeal requested 6,605,211 Appeal filed
Quick take up of
2020 appeal requested 5,557,867 Appeal filed
Strong possibility of
demand as
communicated by  Nodemand decided yet by  Documents
WHT Audit 2018  FBR in the order FBR submitted
Strong possibility of
demand as
communicated by  No demand decided yet by Documents
WHT Audit 2019  FBR in the order FBR submitted
.Stmng possibility of | |
demand as
communicated by  Nodemand decided yet by Documents
WHT Audit 2020  FBR in the order FBR submitted
Strong possibility of
demand as
communicated by  Nodemand decided yet by  Documents
WHT Audit 2021  FBR in the order FBR submitted
Strong possibility of
demand as
communicated by  Nodemand decided yet by Documents
WHT Audit 2022  FBR in the order FBR submitted
U/5 177 one more
year for tax audit
shall be selected
and further demand Year yet to
is expected from be selected
there Not yet decided by FBR

Tax for the period
from 01 January
2022 to 28 March

Accrued income of
Rs. 8,945,145/-
considered to be
taxable resulting in

2023 tentative demand 2,594,092
Tax for the period

from 01 January Company declared

2022 to 28 March tax payable of Rs.

2023 2,832,046/- 2,832,046
Tax for the period

from 01 January Company declared

2022 to 28 March  tax liability of Rs,

2023 16,354,298/- 16,354,298
Total Liability pointed out by FBR so far 34,033,514
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“Annexure C”

Federal Board of Revenue
praeded

riars of Fabatan

PAKISTAN

GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER INLAND REVENUE
ZONE-IV, CORPORATE TAX OFFICE,

KARACHI,

C.NO CIR/ZONE-IV/CTO/KH1/2022-23//3/ DATED: 25/08/2023

Subject: ORDER U/S. 141(2) OF THE INCOME TAX ODINANCE, 2001

With reference to the application of the AR of the taxpayer M/s

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman dated 31-08-2022, received on 01-09-2022

regarding ‘Notice u/s 141(1) the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001’ in respect of

National Assets Insurance Limited, NTN. 3396851 (hereinafter referred

as the Company) it is stated that the Company is in process of winding-up
and notice for winding-up of company was sent to the Pakistan Printing
2022 for Printing in the Gazette of

Corporation of Pakistan on 4% April,
s on 5" April, 2022.

pakistan and which was also published in two newspaper
It is informed that the liquidation process of the Company is at an advance
stage now and the liquidator filed the application u/s. 141(1) the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001. In order to notify the liquidator of the amount which

appears to the undersigned to be sufficient to provide for any tax which is or

will become payable by subject taxpayer, is given as under:

2. As per available record, tax demands of Rs. 6,695,211/- and Rs.

5,557,867/ are payable by National Assets Insurance Limited for tax years

2015 & 2020 respectively after passing of orders u/s 124/129 dated 10-07-

2023.

__,.--"'"

3. Currently, the proceedings of withholding tax monitoring are
underway. Notices under Rule 44(4) of the Income Tax Rule 2002 have beenC%/

issued for tax years 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 & 2022. Further, for selection
u/s 177, the case has already been recommended to the FBR Headquarter
for permission. Accordingly, in near future there is_strong possibility that
further tax demands may be raised on account of Wimts for

which necessary arrangements should be made for the payment.
—
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4, T
he Company has not filed Return of Income for Tax Year 2023

nowe z
ver .they have provided Audited Financial Statements with
accompanying information for the period 01-01-2022 to 28-03-2023. As per
. —_—
Financial Statements, the following areas show incidence of tax payable on
part of the Company:

(i) Under the head of cudrrent assets in the Financial Statements, as
on 28th March, 2023, the Company has declared accrued profit on bank
-____‘_~
deposits at Rs.8,945,145/-. This amount attracts withholding of tax at the
. e T
given rate and accordingly to be pai.

(i)  Under the head of current liabilities, as on 28th March, 2023, the
Company has declared Income Tax Payable at Rs.2,832,046/-, which needs

B

to be paid.

(i) The Company, in the statement of profit and loss account for the
period from 01-01-2022 to 28-03-2023, has declared tax liability at Rs.

16,354,298/-, which needs to be paid.
—————

(iv) The Company has, i1|1 the statement of changes in equity for the
period from 01-01-2022 to 28-03-2023, declared un-appropriated profit of
Rs. 254,405,365/-. Upon liquidation this amount of un-appropriated profit
has to be distributed amongst the shareholders of the company. The
Company Is required to deduct tax upon payments of these un-appropriated

profits to respective shareholders u/s 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance,

2001 as these payments would constitute as dividends u/s 2(19)(c ) of the A

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Note 12.2 of the Financial Statements for the

period 01-01-2022 to 28-03-2023 provides the share holding structure of

the company, according to which share percentage of the shareholders

appears/works as under:-

[S. No. | Name of Share Holders Percentage of share
holding
1 National Bank of Pakistan 8.963%
2 NBP Staff Welfare Foundation 18% I

Page20f3
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3 NBP Employees penevolent Fund | 10%
4 NBP Employees Pension Fund 32%
5 Others (Individual Share Holders) |31.04%

(v) Inthe light of the above share holding structure of the company,
the Company Is required to deduct tax u/s. 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 on the prescribed rates while making payments on account
of un-appropriated proﬂtstlvidends to the shareholders.

5. Accordingly, necessary funds are required to be earmarked for
the above mentioned amount for tax year 2023, or any incidental amount
payable for any of tax years, given at the foregoing paras, may be kept into

(DR. MUHAMMAD ASLAM MARI )
COMMISSIONER-IR

consideration in the liquidation process.

Mr. M. Umair Bhaur

Liquidator,

National Assets Insurance Limited
House No B-25, Sector S-1
Gulshan -e- Maymar

Karachi

Mr. Arshad Rizwan Siddique
Senior Manager Tax, Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman,

15t & 3" Floor, Modern Motors House,
Beaumont Road,
Karachi

page 3of 3

29




NAIL[National Assets) - National Assets Insurance Ltd.

General Insurance Company

Annexure C of Current Report

',v._;pqm..... ::ﬁu

FBR™

PAKISTAN
OFFICE OF THE

ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER INLAND REVENUE
UNIT-04, RANGE-B, ZONE-IV, CORPORATE TAX OFFICE, KARACHL.
No.ACIR /UNIT-04/RANGE-B/ZONE-1V/CT0/2023-2024/8 o¢, Dated 24-04-2024

To
The Commissioner-Inland Revenue,
Zone-1V, Corporate Tax Office,
Karachi.
(Through Proper Channel)

SUBJECT: SELECTION OF CASE U/S_177(1) OF THE INCOME TAX
ORDINANCE, 2001 — APPROVAL REGARDING ng_ YEAR 2022

Kindly refer to the subject noted above.

It is submitted that M/s National Assets Insurance Limited is the taxpayer of this
Zone vide NTN 3396851. The taxpayer’s principle activity is to carry on any or all classed
of non-life insurance business specified in the “Insurance Ordinanr':e, 2000’ including re-
insurance of any or all the class of business. Return of income for the tax year 2022 has
been e-filed on 13-10-2022 by declaring taxabie income at Rs.34,256,947/- on which
income tax chargeable at Rs.9,934,515{-. Accordingly deemed assessment completed
u/s 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

It is further submitted that the.perusal of record revealed that the taxpayer's company
through Annual General Meeting of the company has decided to windup the business
w.e.f. 23-03-2022 as per published in JUNG and DAWN newspaper on 05-04-2022.
Thereforé, in order to complete all the pending proceedings and to protect revenue if
any in future it is imperative select the case of taxpayer for the latest taxpayer which is
presently tax year 2022 for the period ending on 31-12-2022, accordingly a
letter/reminder vide no. CIR/Z-1V/CTO/KHI/2022-23/17 Dated: 07-07-2023 by your
good office was submitted to the Member Audit, Federal Board of Revenue, Islamabad
for obtaining Boards permission u/s 177(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 read
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with clause (105A) Part-IV of the second schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
which is pending so far.

Moreover return of income for tax year 2023 has also been filed on 31-10-2023
declaring taxable income at Rs. 56,459,789/ and tax chargeable at Rs. 16,373,339/-.
Since, taxpayer filed latest return for taxpayer 2023 hence it is purposed that the case
of the taxpayer may kindly be selected for tax year 2023 instated of tax year 2022 if
deemed appropriate.

Report submitted. However, any further instructions in this regard are solicited, please.

i

(NAIMAT RASSOOL)
Assistant commissioner-IR
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Annexure D of Current Report

GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN
FEDERAL INVESTIGATION AGENCY Confidential/
OFFICE OF THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR Time-Limit
% CORPORATE CRIME CIRCLE [Via Post/
\;/ KARACH] ==

Block-64, Pakistan Secretariat, Karachi
Ph No. 021-99202002
[http://fia.gov.pk

No. DD/CCC/K/INQ-53/2023/ \\ o} § -AC,

EVP & Group Head (A), Compliance Group,
The National Bank of Pakistan.

Attn:  LEA Liaison Officer(s) of NBP.
Sub:

14th December 2023

CIRCLE KARACHI

This Agency is conducting the subject inquiry based on a written complaint filed by Mr.
Ubaid Ur Rehman against M/s. National Assets Insurance Limited [a public unlisted company
registered with the SECP having CUIN: 0069844] and officials of the National Bank of Pakistan
['NBP].
2. It has transpired that the National Assets Insurance Limited [NAIL'] was incorporated on
26t June 2009 as a Public Limited Company having registered address at Plot No. 23 E, 2 Floor,
24 Zamzama Commercial Lane, Phase V, DHA Karachi. The company was incorporated by the
NBP as a subsidiary with the stated principal activity of carrying on any or all classes of non-life
insurance business(es). However, the company failed to procure license for insurance business
from the SECP, commence any such business and is currently in the process of liquidation/
winding up.

3. You are hereby required to provide the following record viz. NAIL to this office:

Approvals regarding formation/ incorporation of the company including record
pertaining to allocation(s) of paid-up capital from the NBP, NBP Staff Welfare Foundation,
NBP Employees Benevolent Fund Trust and NBP Employees Pension Fund.

II. Record of all 15,485 employees of NBP to whom shares of NAIL were sold.

111. Record of all communication vis-a-vis seeking license of Insurance Business with the
Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

IV. Details of all NBP executives who remained employed/ nominated in the board of NAIL
since its incorporation on the following format:

Sr | Name of NBP | CNIC | Position in | Tenure in | Positdon in | Tenure
Executive/ Employee | No. NBP NBP NAIL in NAIL

1.

. Details of bank accounts maintained by NAIL with the National Bank of Pakistan on the
following format:

Sr | ACNo. | Nature | Period of AC | AC Turnover | Status of AC
of AC | Maintenance | [Rs.]

Page10of2
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VI. Year-wise details along with amount of profit earned upon maturity of all Treasury Bills

purchased and/ or pledged with the State Bank of Pakistan by NAIL including Term
Deposits maintained [if any] on the following format:

Sr | Name of | Date/Year of | Date/ Amount Interest | Amount
Product  ie, | Purchase/ Year of | Invested/ Rate of | earned
Treasury Bill or | Pledge/ Maturity | Deposited in | Product | as Profit
Term Deposit | Deposit Product [Rs.] | [%] [Rs]

[ |

4. You are further requested to appoint a focal person of NBP well conversant with the

formation of NAIL, its operations etc. who shall appear before the undersigned along with the
requismoned record on nanmmunzm.nmununﬂ.m in the office of FIA

Block-64, Pa ecretariat, Karachi. The said focal person shall be
requmed to record a statement vis-a-vis format:on nf NAl]... its operations and financial affairs in
the instant inquiry.

5.

In case of any queries regarding the requisite record, your authorized LEA Liaison
officer(s) may contact the undersigned at Cell No. +92-333-4241487 or via E-mail at
alimardan5@yahoo.com.

6. Failure to comply with this Call-Up Notice will render you liabl d for proceedings under
the relevant penal laws.

Copy for Information:
1. The Deputy Director FIA CCC, Karachi.

[Syed Ali ]
Assistant Director / Inquiry Officer
Corporate Crime Circle [CCC]

Page2 of 2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL ASSETS INSURANCE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of National Assets Insurance Limited
(the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 28,
2024, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows, the statement of receipts
and payments for the period then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best
of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement
of cash flows and the statement of receipts and payments together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state
of the Company's affairs as at March 28, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive
income, the changes in equity, its cash flows and its receipts and payments for the
period then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs)
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 1.3 to the financial statements, which states that the Company
is no longer a going concern, therefore, these financial statements have been prepared
on the basis of estimated realisable / settlement values of the assets and liabilities
respectively.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Liquidator for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Liquidator is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Liquidator regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)

b)

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of
cash flows and the statement of receipts and payments together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;
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c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the
period were for the purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980
(XVIII of 1980)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Nadeem Yousuf Adil.

Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: June 10, 2024

UDIN: AR2024100919JdSVHoTp
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT MARCH 28, 2024

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Accrued profit on bank deposits
Advance, deposit and other receivable
Bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
Authorized share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Unappropriated profit

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITY

Other creditors and accruals
Income tax payable

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

10

September 29, March 29,
2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
-------------- Rupees --------------
13,392,827 13,101,130
2,053,825 2,498,249
283,929,890 282,199,868
299,376,542 297,799,247
299,376,542 297,799,247

1,250,000,000

1,250,000,000

25,350,010 25,920,010
270,262,397 266,725,308
295,612,407 292,645,318

595,855 298,855
3,168,280 4,855,074
3,764,135 5,153,929

299,376,542 297,799,247

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.

38

o

Liquidator




| —————————

NAILNadenat 85esl National Assets Insurance Ltd.

General Insurance Company

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FROM SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 TO MARCH 28, 2024

Profit on bank deposits
Other income

Liquidation Expenses
Profit before tax
Taxation

- Current tax

- Prior year tax

Profit for the period / year

Earnings per share

Note

1

12

13

14

September 29, March 29,
2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
Rupees
26,747,925 25,149,353
34,586 177,275
26,782,511 25,326,628
(8,132,365) (7,834,660)
18,650,146 17,491,968
(5,405,269) (5,030,101)
(9,707,789) (141,924)
(15,113,058) (5,172,025)
3,537,088 12,319,943
1.395 4.724

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FROM SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 TO MARCH 28, 2024

September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
Rupees
Profit for the period / year 3,537,088 12,319,943
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the period / year 3,537,088 12,319,943

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o

Liquidator
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FROM SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 TO MARCH 28, 2024

Balance as at March 28, 2023
Comprehensive income for the
period ended from March 29, 2023
to September 28, 2023
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period
Repayment of share capital to shareholders
Balance as at September 28, 2023
Comprehensive income for the
period ended from September 29, 2023
to March 28, 2024
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period

Repayment of share capital to shareholders

Balance as at March 28, 2024

Issued,

subscribed and UnapproFtriated Total
paidup capital proti

-------------------- Rupees --------------m-----
36,515,000 254,405,365 290,920,365
- 12,319,943 12,319,943
- 12,319,943 12,319,943
(10,594,990) - (10,594,990)
25,920,010 266,725,308 292,645,318
- 3,537,088 3,537,088
- 3,537,088 3,537,088
(570,000) - (570,000)
25,350,010 270,262,397 295,612,407

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FROM SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 TO MARCH 28, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income tax paid

Liquidation expenses paid

Other receipts

Loan to employee - net

Net cash generated from / (used in)
other operating activities

Total cash generated from / (used in)
all operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of share capital
Net cash flow from all activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period / year

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the period / year

September 29, March 29,
2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
-------------- Rupees --------------
(16,799,851) (3,149,012)
(7,835,358) (8,131,653)
26,456,228 20,993,376
479,003 479,010
2,300,022 10,191,721
2,300,022 10,191,721
(570,000) (10,594,990)
1,730,022 (403,269)
282,199,868 282,603,137
283,929,890 282,199,868

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FROM SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 TO MARCH 28, 2024

RECEIPTS

Profit on bank deposits
Loan to employee - net
Total receipts

PAYMENTS

Liquidation expenses
Income tax paid
Distribution of share capital
Total Payments

Surplus/(Deficit) of receipts over payments

Note

September 29, March 29,
2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
-------------- Rupees --------------
26,456,228 20,993,376
479,003 479,010
26,935,231 21,472,386
(7,835,358) (8,131,653)
(16,799,851) (3,149,012)
(570,000) (10,594,990)
(25,205,209) (21,875,655)
1,730,022 (403,269)

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FROM SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 TO MARCH 28, 2024

1.1

1.2

1.3

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

National Assets Insurance Limited ("the Company") was incorporated on June 26, 2009
as a public limited company in Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984
(now Companies Act, 2017). The registered office of the Company is situated at 69-2
Abid Majeed Road, Lahore Cantt, Lahore.

The principal activity of the Company as per its Memorandum of Associations was to
carry on any or all classes of non-life insurance business specified in the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 (as amended, modified and / or reenacted from time to time) including
re-insurance of any or all classes of business.

NON-GOING CONCERN BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Company could not start its underwriting operations because despite continued
efforts it could not obtain insurance license from Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP) since its incorporation. In the year 2018, SECP issued letter No.
SECP/ID/PRDD/7/2018/NAIL/V/13441 dated 29 January 2018 to the Company, based
on its communications with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), stating that the Company
appears to be a subsidiary of National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) under Section 2(1)(68)
of the Companies Act, 2017 whereas a banking company cannot establish a subsidiary
to carry out insurance business. As per letter, majority of directors on the Company's
board are NBP's executives and powers are also vested with NBP through NBP's directors
on the boards of other shareholders of the Company i.e., NBP Employees Pension Fund,
NBP Employees Benevolent Fund and NBP Staff Welfare Foundation. SECP, therefore,
regretted the Company's application for insurance license.

In view of the above letter received from SECP, the Company initiated legal consultation
process. The Company's legal advisers were of the opinion that NBP does not have a
control over the Company. NBP employees' funds are separate entities from NBP, and
their shareholding in the Company does not create NBP's indirect control over the
Company resulting in a parent-subsidiary relationship. However, besides providing this
opinion, the Company's legal advisers also advised the management a roadmap for
repositioning the Company's shareholding and governance structure to resolve the
regulatory objections regarding NBP's presumed control over the Company. In the light
of this consultation, the Company was contemplating to change its shareholding structure
by seeking approval from shareholders through divestment by NBP employee funds to
a strategic equity investor, and to reduce the number of directors from NBP's executives
below 50% of total directorship on the Company's board, thereby reducing NBP's
shareholding and directors in the Company. However, the majority shareholders did not
give consent for the said arrangement, rather they advised for the winding up of the
Company. Later on, the Board of Directors initiated the prescribed procedures to wind
up the Company adopting “Members’ Voluntary Winding Up” under the Companies Act,
2017.
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Furthermore, members of the Company passed a special resolution in their Annual
General Meeting held on March 29, 2022, in which they showed their consent to wind
up the affairs of the Company as the members' voluntary winding up. Accordingly, a
formal process of winding up in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2017
was initiated and the Liquidator was duly appointed as per section 353 of the Companies
Act, 2017.

Considering the compliance of the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2017 and
above mentioned facts, the first set of special period financial statements were prepared
from January 01, 2022 to March 28, 2023 under section 353 of the Companies Act ,2017.
As the matters were still pending another set of special period financial statements were
preapred from March 29, 2023 to September 28, 2023 in compliance of section 415 of
the Companies Act, 2017. Given the ongoing unresolved issues with the FBR, the
winding-up process is prolonged until these matters are resolved. Consequently, these
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with section 415 of the Companies
Act, 2017, for another special period from September 29, 2023, to March 28, 2024,
instead of the normal financial year.

In view of the aforesaid reasons, the Company is not considered to be a going concern.
Hence, these financial statements have been prepared using the non-going concern
basis of accounting on the basis of estimated realizable / settlement values of the assets
and liabilities respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from
the IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have
been followed.

Until the financial year 2020, the Company was complying with the Insurance Ordinance,
2000, Insurance Rules, 2017 and Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 while preparing
its financial statements on basis of legal advice due to the reason that it was contemplating
to obtain insurance license and to start insurance activities. However, during the prior
year, the majority of shareholders of the Company have communicated their intention
to the management that they are going to initiate the winding up process and do not
want the Company to put further effort to obtain insurance license any more. The Company
has started winding up process as disclosed in note 1.3 to the financial statement.
Accordingly, the compliance with Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insurance Rules, 2017
and Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 now appear to be unwarranted and foregone.
There is no impact of this change on the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company.
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2.2

23

2.4

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates. These financial statements
are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared using the non-going concern basis of
accounting on the basis of estimated realizable / settlement values of the assets and
liabilities respectively. In realizable / settlement value basis, assets are earned at amount
of cash and cash equivalents that could currently be obtained by selling the assets in
an orderly disposal. Liabilities are carried at their settlement values, that is the undiscounted
amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liabilities in the
normal course of business.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards, as applicable in Pakistan require management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to these financial statements or judgments were exercised
in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Realizable / settlement value of assets and liabilities respectively
Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments -

Property, equipment and intangibles 3.1&3.2
Impairment of financial assets 3.5
Staff retirement benefits 3.10
Provision 3.12
Taxation 3.15

The Company started preparing its financial statements using the non-going concern
basis of accounting on the basis of estimated realizable / settlement values of the assets
and liabilities respectively from the year ended December 31, 2021 and recorded
adjustments to the account for differences between the Company's recognized assets
and the measurements of its assets and liabilities (including measurement changes
resulting from changes in assumption).

Analysis of upside not recognized in the statement of profit or loss of the Company on
the assets, if any.
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2.5

251

252

Application of new standards, amendments and interpretations to the published
approved accounting standards

Amendments and interpretations to published accounting approved accounting
standards which became effective during the current period / year.

There were certain amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards
which became effective for the Company's annual financial statements for the current
period / year. However, these do not have any significant impact on the Company's
financial reporting and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS that are not yet effective

The following amendments are effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after
the date mentioned against each of them. These amendments are either not relevant
to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the
Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date
(Annual reporting periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' -Clarification on
how seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and
leaseback transactions January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial

Statements' - Classification of liabilities as current or

non-current January 01, 2024
Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution

of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture Deferred indefinitely
Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards
which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 — First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented,
unless otherwise stated.
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341

3.2

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost signifying historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. The useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement
of financial position date. Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss by
applying reducing balance method except for vehicles which are depreciated using
the straight line method at the rates specified for calculation of depreciation in note 4
to these financial statements.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or
loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are available for use
while on disposals, depreciation is charged up to the month in which the assets are
disposed off.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that this carrying value may not be
recoverable. If any such indications exist and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable
amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount of the assets disposed off. These are included in the statement of profit or
loss.

Intangibles

Intangibles are stated initially at cost. After initial recognition, an intangible asset is
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment
loss.

Amortization is based on its useful life. The Company assesses whether the useful
life of the intangible asset is finite or infinite. In case of finite life, amortization is charged
to income on a systematic basis over its useful life. Amortization shall begin when the
asset is available for use. Amortization shall cease at the earlier of the date asset is
classified at held for sale and the date the asset is derecognized. Method for amortization
shall reflect the pattern in which asset's future economic benefits are expected to be
consumed. If pattern is not determinable, then straight line method is used.

Intangible asset arising from development phase are recognized separately. Moreover,
expenditure on research phase is recognized as expense when it is incurred.

Amortization is charged to statement of profit or loss by applying straight line method
with the useful life of seven years.

48




| —————————————

NAILNedenat avesl National Assets Insurance Ltd.

General Insurance Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FROM SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 TO MARCH 28, 2024

3.3 Financial assets
a) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), if any, and

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), if any, and those to be measured at amortized
cost

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in statement
profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this
will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in
equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are

three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments,
if any:
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a) Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in statement of profit or loss and presented in other income / (other expenses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the canying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses), interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income / (other expenses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other income/
(other expenses) and impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

c) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL
is recognised in statement of profit or loss and presented net within other income / (other
expenses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments, if any, at fair value for
financial instruments quoted in an active market, the fair value corresponds to a market
price (level 1). For financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market, the fair
value is determined using valuation techniques including reference to recent arm's length
market transactions or transactions involving financial instruments which are substantially
the same (level 2), or discounted cash flow analysis including, to the greatest possible
extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data (level 3).
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3.4

3.5

a) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Where the Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses
on equity investments, if any, in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

b) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Changes in the fair value of equity investments, if any, at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in other income/ (other expenses) in the statement of profit or loss as
applicable.

Dividends from such investments will continue to be recognised in statement of profit
or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Financial liabilities Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised
in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition
is also included in statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade debts and other receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach

permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.
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3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

De-recognltlon of financial assets and financial liabilities
a) Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.
Any interest in such derecognised financial assets that is created or retained by the
Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

b) Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its
statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged
or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the
financial statements when there is a legal enforceable right to set off and the Company
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of statement of cash flows includes cash
deposited in Company's bank accounts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.

3.10 Staff retirement benefits

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) in the
periods in which they occur. Amounts recorded in the profit and loss account are limited
to current and past service costs, gains or losses on settlements, and net interest income
(expense). All other changes in the net defined benefit obligation are recognized directly
in other comprehensive income with no subsequent recycling through the profit and loss
account.

52




| ——————————

NAIL[Nadenat 85el National Assets Insurance Ltd.

General Insurance Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FROM SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 TO MARCH 28, 2024

3.11 Creditors and accrued liabilities

Accrued liabilities and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which
is normally the transaction cost.

3.12 Provisions
Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

3.13 Leases
The Company has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease
liability for short-term leases with terms of 12 months or less. Lease payments on these
assets are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

3.14 Revenue recognitions
Revenue is recognised when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring
control of a promised goods or service to a customer at a point in time. Revenue is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts,
rebates and government levies. The details are as follows:
a) Return on fixed income investments

Income on Market Treasury Bills, is accrued using the effective interest rate method.

b) Dividend

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the dividend is
established.

c) Return on bank deposits

Return on bank deposits is recognized on accrual basis in accordance with the
contractual terms.

3.15 Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation
after taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any.
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Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for by using the statement of financial position liability method
in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in these financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the statement of financial position date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
profit and loss account, except to the case that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

3.16 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pak Rupees at the rates prevailing
on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
statement of financial position date. Exchange differences are taken to the statement
of profit or loss currently.

3.17 Dividend and appropriation to reserves
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the
Company's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are declared and
other appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the
board of directors.

3.18 Transaction with Related Party

All transactions involving related Parties arising in the normal course of business are
conducted at agreed or commercial terms and condition.

Note September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
Rupees
4 ADVANCE, DEPOSIT AND OTHER RECEIVABLE
Current portion of long term loan 8.1 2,053,825 2,498,249
2,053,825 2,498,249
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4.1 This represents house loan of Rupees 10 million to then Company Secretary @ 3% per

6.1

annum which is secured against 1% (of loan amount) equitable registered mortgage.
The market rate of interest at the time of disbursement was estimated to 13.25% per
annum which was used as discount rate for present value adjustment. Loan was to be
adjusted from monthly salary in 145 equal installments. However considering the liquidation
porcess , repayment schedule has been revised whereby the remaining outstanding
payment will be recieved on conclusion of the winding up process.

September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
Rupees

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax asset has not been recognized in these financial statements as the Company
is non going concern basis, more fully disclosed in note 1.3 of these financial statements.

Note September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
Rupees
BANK BALANCES
Current account 25,349,961 36,514,951
National Income Daily Account (NIDA) 258,579,929 246,088,186

6.1 283,929,890 282,603,137

These bank accounts are maintained with National Bank of Pakistan (a related party).
The mark-up on NIDA is calculated on daily basis on the previous day's account balance

at the rate of 20.5% (September 28, 2023: 15.5% to 20.5%) and credited on a semi-
annual basis.

AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
September 28, March 28, March 28, September 28,
2023 2023 2024 2023
(Number of shares) e Rupees --------------
Ordinary shares of
125,000,000 125,000,000 Rs. 10/-each 1,250,000,000 1,250,000,000
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8 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

September 29, March 28, September 29, March 29,
2023 to 2023 2023 to 2023 to
March 28, March 28, September 28,
2024 2024 2023
(Number of shares) e Rupees ----------—---
2,535,001 2,592,001 Ordinary shares of 25,350,010 25,920,010
Rs. 10/- each fully
paid in cash
50,000,000 50,000,000 As at beginning of 25,920,010 36,515,000
the period / year
(47,464,999) (47,407,999) Repayment of share (570,000) (10,594,990)

capital to shareholders

2,535,001 2,592,001 As at end of the period/ 25,350,010 25,920,010

year

September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,

2024 2023

8.1 Repayment of share capital to shareholders ~ ______________ [ R ——
Distribution of capital to major shareholders - -
Distribution of capital to individual shareholders 570,000 10,594,990
570,000 10,594,990

September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
-------------- Numbers --------------

8.2 The shareholding structure of the Company is as under:

Others (Individual Shareholders) 2,535,001 3,651,500
2,535,001 3,651,500

Section 141 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 requires a certain permission from
Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) before distribution of liquidated funds to the shareholders.
When the Company accessed FBR seeking the required permission, it was informed
that now FBR entertains online applications only through their IRIS system. However,
the required Form is not yet available on FBR’s website. Further, certain tax demands
have been raised on account of issues mentioned in note 10 of the financial statements.

Due to this situation, the liquidator decided, under the advice of consultants, to distribute
only the share capital amount at initial phase (under intimation to FBR) as no withholding
tax is involved in distribution of share capital.
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As a result, Rs. 344,815,000/- were distributed to all major shareholders on December
07, 2022, being 100% of their share capital amount and Rs. 118,670,000/- were
distributed to individual shareholders during the last week of December, 2022.

Later on, the liquidator also distributed Rs. 2,080,000/-, Rs. 7,554,990/- , Rs.
840,000/- and Rs. 120,000/- in 2nd, 3rd ,4th and 5th tranch respectively to individual
shareholders after the March 28, 2023 and Rs. 570,000/- after September 28, 2023

The shareholders have been invited through newspapers advertisements and through
sending letters to their last available addresses to lodge claims against their shares.

The process is going on in this respect.

September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
Rupees
9 OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Audit Fee 594,000 297,000
Other payable 1,855 1,855
595,855 298,855

10 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

10.1 The income tax assessments of the Company have been completed up to and including
the tax year 2022 (i.e. year ended on December 31, 2021). The tax returns for the tax
years from 2010 to 2022 (Except tax years 2015 and 2020) have been treated as
assessment orders under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 on the dates
returns were filed, unless amended otherwise.

In respect of assessment years 2015 and 2020, the Deputy Commissioner Inland
Revenue (DCIR) made certain additions / disallowances which resulted in additional
tax liability amounting to Rs. 12.56 million and Rs. 5.43 million respectively. The Company
submitted appeals before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) where CIR
(Appeals) set aside the addition and disallowances made by the DCIR with the direction
to re-examination, re-consideration, re-verification and re-adjustment. The ACIR passed
order dated July 10, 2023 giving appeal effect of CIR (Appeals) order creating demand
of Rs. 6.69 million and Rs. 5.55 million for tax year 2015 and 2020 respectively.
Company submitted the appeals before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals)
on August 08, 2023 and received the appellate orders on January 26, 2024 and February
13, 2024 respectively. The ACIR passed the appeal affect orders dated March 13, 2024
and March 14, 2024 creating demand of Rs. 5.55 million and Rs. 4.15 million for tax
year 2020 and 2015 respectively. The Company paid this tax demand (during the period)
under advice of its tax consultants. Representatives of major shareholders verbally
communicated to the liquidator in an informal meeting that they also want him to pay
the demanded amount as soon as possible without further contesting with FBR in the
larger interest of all the shareholders.
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After continious efforts of the Company, FBR issued the order u/s 141 of the Income
Tax Ordinance 2001, dated 25 August 2023. Instead of objectively advising an amount
to be set aside by the liquidator as referred in section 141(2) of the Income Tax Ordinance
2001, the order did not contain the prescribed information due to which considerable
delay has been caused in distribution of retained earnings to the shareholders. Further,
in the same order, the tax authorities also took up the audited finacial statements for
the period from 01 January 2022 to 28 March 2023 and raised a demand of around Rs.
21.7 million. This demand was raised even before the due date for the submission of
return for the tax year 2023 (return was not submitted by that time). Later the company
submitted the return for the tax year 2023 based on the computation of tax consultant
within due date. The liability that appeared in result of income tax computation at the
time of submission of the return, was duly paid alongwith the return. No additional
provision has been booked considering that the demand raised in the order issued by
FBR u/s 141 was incorrect. However, as FBR has once mentioned the demand for the
Tax Year 2023, the Company has advised the tax consultant to obtain a clean chit from
FBR regarding this tax year as well as regarding all other tax matters.

10.2 One of the major shareholders of the Company i.e. "National Bank of Pakistan" received
Letter # DD / CCC / K/IINQ-53/2023 / 11075-76, dated 14 December 2023 from FIA
regarding initiating an inquiry under the subject "Requisition of record in inquiry No. 53
/2023 of FIA Crime Circle Branch, Karachi". FIA had initiated this inquiry on the complaint
of Mr. Ubaid ur Rehman against the "Company" as well as against the "Officials of
NBP". Considering the liquidator reasonably in the know about the matters of the
Company, on advice of NBP, the liquidator has been given the additional responsibility
to appear before FIA as a focal person regarding this inquiry and for providing all the
record as desired by FIA. Accordingly, the liquidator, briefed the Officials of FIA about
the matter and also provided them the photocopies of the required documents. There
had been two meetings between the liquidator and the Assistant Director FIA, during
which the record was provided and the Assistant Director was throughly briefed about
the salient matters. The company has not yet received any information about the fate
of this inquiry which reflects that this matter is still in pendency.

Note September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
-------------- Rupees --—---—--—--
11 OTHER INCOME
Interest income on house loan 4.1 34,586 177,275
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Note September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
-------------- Rupees --------------
12 LIQUIDATION EXPENSES
Monthly Allowances to liquidator
and supporting staff 5,039,868 5,039,868
Legal and professional charges 305,912 1,072,117
Auditors' remuneration 12.2 297,000 297,000
Printing & stationery 1,044,256 858,215
Utilities 600,782 108,679
Entertainment 34,977 57,679
Postage and periodicals 676,770 260,395
Travelling expense 132,800 140,050
Other liquidation expense - 657
8,132,365 7,834,660
12.2 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 250,000 250,000
Out of pocket expenses 25,000 25,000
Sales tax 22,000 22,000
297,000 297,000
13 TAXATION

14

The ACIR passed the appeal affect order dated March 13, 2024 and March 14, 2024
creating demand of Rs. 5.55 million and Rs. 4.15 million for tax year 2020 and 2015
respectively, company paid the tax demanded during the period.

September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
EARNINGS PERSHARE @~ -~ Rupees --------------

There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share which is based on:

Profit after tax - Rupees 3,537,088 12,319,943
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares - Numbers 2,536,391 2,608,194
Earnings per share - Rupees 1.395 4.724
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15 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of directors and their close family members, key management
personnel and major shareholders of the Company. The associated companies are
associated either based on holding in equity or due to the same management and / or
common directors. All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course
of business are conducted at agreed terms and conditions. Transactions with the key
management personnel are made under their terms of employment / entitlements.
Balances, including investments in associates, are disclosed in relevant notes to these
financial statements. Details of transactions with related parties during the year, other
than remuneration paid to chief executive officer and other executives as disclosed in
Note 21 to the financial statements, are as follows:

September 29, March 29,
2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
-------------- Rupees --------------
National Bank of Pakistan - associated company
Transactions
Profit on bank deposits 26,747,925 25,149,353
Bank charges - -
Balances
Accrued profit on bank deposits 13,392,827 13,101,130
Bank balances 283,929,890 282,199,868
September 29, March 29,
2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
-------------- Number --------------
16 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
At period / year end 2 2
Average 2 2
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17

171

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprise of interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk. The Company manages the market risk
exposures by following internal risk management policies:

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly
from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to
transactions in foreign currencies. The Company believes that it is not exposed to
foreign exchange risk as all contractual assets and contractual liabilities are in Pakistani
Rupees.

Other price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising
from interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by the factors specific to
the individual financial instruments or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to other price risk.

Interest rate risk

The Company invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to interest / mark-
up rate risk. Interest / mark-up rate risk to the company is the risk of changes in market
interest / mark-up rates reducing the overall return on its interest bearing securities.
The Company limits interest / mark-up rate risk by monitoring changes in interest /
mark-up rates in the currencies in which its cash and investments are denominated.
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September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
Rupees
Floating rate of financial instruments
Bank balance 258,579,929 246,088,186

Financial liability - -
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments:

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair
values through profit and loss. Therefore, change in interest rates at the reporting date
would not affect profit and loss account.

(b) Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument
will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The
Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking
transactions with a large number of counterparties in various industries and by continually
assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type
of business activities. As a result, any change in economic, political or other conditions
would effect their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar manner. The company’s
credit risk exposure is not significantly different from that reflected in the financial
statements. The management monitors and limits the company’s exposure to credit risk
through monitoring of client’s exposure and conservative estimates of provisions for
doubtful assets, if any. The management is of the view that it is not exposed to significant
concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are adequately diversified in entities
of sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors and backed by government
of Pakistan.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure as
specified below:
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September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
March 28, September 28,
2024 2023
Rupees
Advance, deposit and other receivable 2,053,825 2,498,249
Bank balances 283,929,890 282,199,868

285,983,715 284,698,117

The credit quality of the Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to
external credit ratings as follows:

September 29, March 29,

2023 to 2023 to
Rating March 28, September 28,
- 2024 2023
Short Long Rating Rupees
term term agency
National Bank
of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA 283,929,890 284,698,117

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it always has sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when
due without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company is not subject to significant
liquidity risk as it has sufficient bank balances to meet its working capital requirements.
At 28 September 2023, the Company had bank balances of Rupees 282.199 million
(2021: Rupees 282.603 million).

d) Recognized fair value measurements - Financial Assets
(i) Fair value hierarchy

Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognized and measured at fair value in these financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value,
the Company has classified its financial instruments into the following three levels:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly
traded derivatives, and trading and available for sale securities) is based on quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting year. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in
level 1.
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Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques
which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
company-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data,
the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

There were no financial asset and financial liability to be reported under above levels
as the carrying amounts of all financial assets and financial liabilities presented in these
financial statements are a reasonable approximation of fair value. Due to short term
nature, carrying amounts of certain financial assets and financial liabilities are considered
to be the same as their fair value.

(e) Recognized fair value measurements - Non-Financial Assets
The carrying value of all non-financial assets reflected in these financial statements are

approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence
at each reporting date.

17.2 Financial instruments by categories

18

Amortised cost

September 29, March 29,

As per statement of financial position 2023 to 2023 to
P P March 28,  September 28,
. . 2024 2023
Financial assets
-------------- Rupees --------------
Advances, deposits and other receivables 2,053,825 2,498,249
Bank balances 283,929,890 282,199,868

285,983,715 284,698,117

Non - Financial liabilities

Other creditors and accruals 595,855 298,855

AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Liquidator of the Company
on June 10, 2024.

o

Liquidator
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As at March 28, 2024

No. of shareholders From To Total Shares Held % of Capital
2,535 1 1000 2,535,010 100.00%

3 1001 2000 - 0.00%

1 2001 4500000 - 0.00%

1 4500001 5000000 - 0.00%

1 5000001 9000000 - 0.00%

1 9000001 16000000 - 0.00%

2,535,010 100%

Categories of Shareholders

Description No. of Shares Held % of Capital
Shareholders

Individuals 2,535 2,535,010 100.00%
NBP - - 0.00%
NBP Staff Welfare Foundation - - 0.00%
NBP Employees Benevolent Fund - - 0.00%
NBP Employees Pension Fund - - 0.00%

2,535 2,535,010 100%
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NOTICE REGARDING LIQUIDATED FUNDS TO SHAREHOLDERS

To
The Individual Shareholders

This is to inform you that the company is in the process of liquidation.

We hereby once again mention that all those shareholders who did not receive their capital
amount yet, may contact us.

In cases of deceased shareholders, the succession certificates mentioning about shares
of the Company is the primary requirement for such distribution as per our lawyer.

In case, there are any issues related to CNIC#, NBP will be the authority for confirmation
as the primary data was provided by NBP in the year 2011.

In all other cases, after receiving the following information and completion of our due
diligence, the amount shall be distributed;

Name & Father's name

CNIC # & copy of CNIC

Copy of share certificate & Folio number of share certificate
Current postal address

Bank account details preferably IBAN number

Contact details

oW =

You may send the above information on the following e-mail addresses:

E-mail addresses: m.u.bhaur@nail.com.pk
jehanzaib@nail.com.pk

Contact No. 0334-3781065

Address: NATIONAL ASSETS INSURANCE LIMITED
Ground Floor, National Bank of Pakistan
P.E.C.H.S., Block-2, Tariq Road, Karachi

Note: Sections 417 read with section 244 of the Companies Act 2017 shall
remain applicable.

Lists of shareholders are uploaded on website https://nail.com.pk

o
-

Liquidator
National Assets Insurance Limited
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Proxy Form

I/We, of being member
of “National Assets Insurance Limited” and holder of ordinary shares
as per Share Register Folio No. hereby appoint

of at my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf

at the 7th Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company to be held at Ground Floor, NBP,
Aitemaad Islamic Banking, PECHS, Block-2, Tariq Road Karachi, on 10 September, 2024 at
11:00 a.m., to transact the business as mentioned in the notice of this EOGM on page no. 3.

Signed this day of ,2024.

‘Witness:

1. Signature

Signature
Name on Revenue
Address Stamp of Rs.5/-

CNIC No.

2. Signature

Name
Address
CNIC No.

Notes:

1. The proxy form in order to be valid must be signed across five rupees revenue stamp and should be
deposited with the company not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. The proxy must be a member of the company.
3. Signature should agree with the specimen signature, registered with the company.

4. All shareholders are hereby informed that in case proxies attend the meeting, the same proxies would
have all the powers of decision making during the meeting. Decision made during the meeting by the
shareholders and / or proxies would not be amended later.

5. The share transfer books of the company is already closed due to winding up proceedings.
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Address:

To,
National Bank of Pakistan

If undelivered, please return to:

NATIONAL ASSETS INSURANCE LIMITED
Ground Floor, NBP, Aitemaad Islamic Banking,
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